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Levering was established in 1880, To begin with it had only crude 
log buildings and meager equipment. Total start-up cost was around 
$10,000, subscribed equally by the Baptists and the Creek Nation. School 
opened Sept, 1, 1881, with fifty boys and fifty girls. (The number stayed 
roughly the sane throughout its history. Levering remained coeducational 
until its last few years,)

The school was gradually up-graded. It occupied a 20-aere campus. 
The rest of the 80 acres were devoted to fields, gardens, and orchards, 
 pen acres were cleared for a thousand apple trees and 400 to 500 peach 
trees, Frame buildings gradually replaced the log structures. And in 
1885 the school's most pretentious building was erected -the only one 
still standing. Of cut native stone, the two-story hospital was built 
by D, Price of luf aula at a cost of $1400. It was 18 x 34 feet in size, 
An additional $400 was spent to give it a basement for storage of fruits 
and vegetables,

By 1891 the campus was clean and comfortable, its buildings 
surrounded by roses, lilacs, and other flowering shrubs. There were 
hickories, catalpas, and other shade trees, a vine covered arbor, swings, 
and a croquet ground. A white picket fence divided the campus, Thesboys 
stayed on the south side of the fence, for the most part, the girls on the 
north* The youths were not segregated in classes, but they were at most 
other places, even in church. Discipline was strict. One commom punish­ 
ment for the girls at Levering! Bags were tied to their feet and they were 
forced to shuffle about to polish the wooden floors!

Frame buildings in 1891, in addition to the stone hospital, included 
a large two-story dormitory for the boys (which burned in 1909)» an 
administration building, a doctor's home and off ice, several smaller 
dormitories, and such miscellaneous structures as commissary, meat house, 
smoke house, laundry, and ice house. Today all of these are gone but the 
hospital, dilapidated and windowless, but still structurally sound.

As well it might be, for the building   measuring 18 x 34 feet 
on the outside   has 18-inch-thick walls and 4 x 6-inch window sills, 
all of rock and skillfully laid* Hie original shingles were of wood. 
Today these are covered with asphaltic ones which, while not enhancing 
the looks of the old structure, have at least protected the wooden rafters.

The building once boasted a porch on its east front, outside 
stairways on both the north and south. These were of wood and all trace 
of them has now disappeared, Entrance to the basement is from the west, 
A half-stairway led down from the outside. The full basement was high 
enough to permit shallow, above-ground windows.

Only a partition or two remain inside the building. An interior 
stairway, too, has been removed. The structure was last used for make­ 
shift housing during the Depression Thirties, It stands today starkly 
stripped and naked, its emptiness relieved only by vines clinging to its 
sturdy stone walls.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Levering Mission grew out of the desire of the Creek Indians to 
educate their children in schools near them so they would fee more likely 
to retain the tribal philosophy of life. The tfewoka district of the 
Creek Nation had had, before Levering was established, only primary 
schools for the younger children. The more promising youths were then 
sent to eastern colleges for higher education, with sometimes unfortunate 
results. An early day traveler, Ethan Alien Hitchcock, on this point 
found among the Indians "but one sentiment* and that was a most decided 
opposition to establishment and continuance of Indian Schools beyond 
the limits of Indian ^territory. ttie reason given is a general complaint 
of habits with which most of the young Indian lads return from these 
schools to their home. They are said to return with almost every bad 
habit that can be named   gambling and drinking included, and yet not 
the worst in their estimation* Hie students got no knowledge that was 
of any use. The proper place, therefore, for expending Indian money for 
education is in my opinion in the Indian nation where the children are 
not removed from the observation of their parents," This judgment was 
confirmed years later by an old Creek chief, Holey Canard, who pointed 
out sadlyj "There are no 'cuss 1 words in any of the Indian languages. 
Some educated Indians of late are becoming very proficient in the use of 
the white man's 'cuss* words, What a pity,**

* # #

Levering Manual Labor School began as a joint prefect of the 
Southern Baptist Convention and the Creek Nation in 1880, in some crude 
log buildings and with meager equipment. Each agency had contributed 
$59000. A manual labor school, of course, is one in which the students 
work at useful chores that contribute to the maintenance and well being 
of the school as well as to the vocational training of the boys and/or 
girls. In addition, students are also given a full schedule of formal, 
academic class work. In the school operated by a church a certain 
amount of religious instruction was also included in the day-to-day 
routine. Under a variety of sponsors, and names, Levering operated from 
1880 to 1910, exerting a strong, consistently sound Influence for good 
on a generation of Creek youth as it prepared for the responsibilities 
of statehood.
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Significance

levering Mission

In the spring of 1891 the Baptists turned the school over to the 
Creeks and the name was changed to Wetumka Boarding School. Israel 6. 
Vore had served as superintendent from 1883 antil he died in 1887. He 
was the first of at least four educators whose leadership was unusually 
capable and beneficial. The second, Col, William Eobison took over in 
1891 and proved to be one of the finest educators of old Indian territory. 
He and his wife were both of Indian extraction. Biey were deeply 
interested in the velfare of the students and understood their problems. 
But for one two~year period, Bobison served as superintendent until he 
died in November 1899.

Alexander Posey, greatly admired political leader of the Creeks and 
one of the finest poets the American Indians have yet produced, served as 
superintendent from 1900 to 1901, when the federal government took over 
the school and changed the name to Creek National Boarding School, the 
fourth figure to exert an influence for good on the school, if somewhat 
more indirectly, as Alice Robert son. She served for a number of years 
during this period as superintendent of all Creek Nation schools ... and 
later became Oklahoma's first Congresswoman,

With statehood in 190? the girls at Levering were sent to a similar 
facility at Euf aula and the school's name was again changed, this time to 
Wetumka National Boarding School for Boys. With the Creek Nation 
dissolved public schools began to appear and as Indian children started 
drifting into these the need for separate schools diminished. When the 
boys dormitory burned in the fall of 1909 the decision not to rebuild was 
made and Levering, after three decades of service to the tribe, closed for 
good at toe end of that school term, in 1910,

* * *

levering Mission played an important role in the lives, not only of 
the Creek youth who attended, but in the people of the Wetumka area as 
well. As such it sumbolizes the dedication and genius of many great 
teachers, doctors, and missionaries who cheerfully devoted their lives, 
labor   and love   to the task of educating and Christianising the 
Horth American Indians. As Chief Canard told one researcher, while urging 
her to work up a complete history of the old schooli "I would like for the 
younger generation to know of our experiences out there. Probably they 
would appreciate their school more.** Levering*s influence has remained 
strong to this day, which is perhaps the best possible testimonial to its 
importance.
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